CIBOLA COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez Martha Garcia Christine Lowery

Chairman 1t Vice Chairman 2" Vice Chairman
Ralph Lucero Robert Windhorst
Commissioner Commissioner

Regular Commission Meeting
Thursday, December 16", 2021
5:00 p.m.

Cibola County Commission Chambers

PURSUANT TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH ORDER DATED DECEMBER 10™, 2021, ALL INDIVIDUALS ARE
REQUIRED TO WEAR A MASK WHILE AT COUNTY FACILITIES.

ALL OTHER PUBLIC HEALTH ORDER COVID-19 REQUIREMENTS AND FIRE MARSHAL CAPACITY LIMITS
APPLY.

1.
2
3.
4.
)

6.

9

Call to Order
Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Prayer
Approval of Agenda

Public Comment

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment period. Speaker’s
comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests more information.
The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the agenda forward in a prompt yet
efficient manner.

Minutes
a. Minutes from November 18", 2021, Regular Commission Meeting
b. Minutes from November 22", 2021, Special Commission Meeting
Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate Fletcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance Director
b. Public Safety Building Scope of Work Update- Kate Fletcher-County Manager

Public Hearing
a. Ordinance 2021-02 Local Economic Development Act (LEDA)

10. New Business — Action May Be Taken

Consideration of Resolution 21-66 Premium Pay For Eligible County Employees

Consideration of Ordinance 2021-02 Local Economic Development Act (LEDA)

Consideration to use ARPA funds for a County-Wide Broadband Feasibility Study

Consideration of Resolution 21-67 Supporting the 2022 Legislative Priorities of the NM Counties
Consideration of Resolution 21-68 Requesting Legislature Redraw District 30 To Preserve Voice of
Cibola County

Consideration to approve requisitions over $20,000

a. Finley Engineering-Broadband Feasibility Study-$84,530

Page 1 of 2

o0 o

—



11. Executive Session

Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section
10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)
I. Cibola County vs. Jaynes, Inc.
2. Cibola County v. Amerisource Bergen, Cardinal Health, McKesson et al

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)

c. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session

Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed In Closed Session Were Limited To Those Specified In
Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statutes Section §10-15-1.

12. New Business-Action May Be Taken
a. Direction to Staff Regarding Cibola County v. Jaynes, Inc.
b. Direction to Staff Regarding Cibola County v. Amerisource Bergen, Cardinal Health, McKesson et al

13. Announcements

The Next Commission Meeting will be a Special Commission Meeting which will be held on, Tuesday, January 11t%,
2022, at 5:00p.m. The Cibola County Offices will be closed Thursday, December 23 and Friday, December 24™,
2021, in observation of Christmas Holidays and Thursday, December 30" and Friday, December 31%, 2021, in
observation of New Year’s Holidays.

14. Adjournment

Page 2 of 2



Minutes
11.18.2021

Regular Commission
Meeting Minutes




Regular Commission
Meeting Thursday,
November 18, 2021
5:00 p.m,

The Cibola County Commission held a Special Meeting on Thursday November 18, 2021 at 5:00 pm in the
Cibola County Commission Center

Elected Officials Present Staff
Baniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1** Vice Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Christina Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner Marisa Baca, Filing/Recording

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

1. Call to Order
Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 5:00pm

2. Roll Call

5 — Present ,
3. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Windhorst
4. Prayer
Led by Commissioner Lucero
5. Approval of Agenda
Tabled items
9.) Presentation
10.) a. selection of Commission Redistricting Plan Based on the 2020 Federal Census
11.) Executive Session removed for agenda.
Motioned to approve by Lucero
Seconded by Windhorst
S Affirmative

6. Public Comment - ONE ---Joan K

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment
period. Speaker’s comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County
Commissioners requests more information, The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input
but also to move the agenda forward in a prompt yet efficient manner.

Page1of3



7. Minutes

a. Minutes from October 28, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting
Motioned to approve by Commlssmner Windhorst
Seconded by Commissioner Garcia
5 Affirmative

b. Minutes from November 9%, 2021, Special Canvassing Commission Meeting

Motioned to approve by Commissioner Garcia
Seconded by Commissioner Lucero
5 Affirmative

8. Reports

a. Budget and Finance Report-Paul Ludi-Finance Director

9.Presentation

Redistricting -Research and polling-Steve Cabiedes ----TABLED

10.New Business — Action May Be Take

a.

b.

Selection of Commission Redistricting Plan Based on the 2020 Federal Census
TABLED
Direction to Staff to Publish the Title and General Subject Matter of a Local Economic Development
Act Ordinance
Motioned to approve by Commissioner Garcia
Seconded by Commissioner Lucero
5 Affirmative
Consideration of Quad Event Alcohol Application Permit for Febru'uy
Motioned to approve by Commissioner Windhorst
Seconded by Commissioner Lowery
5 Affirmative
Consideration of Resolution 21-62 Transfer of Dump Truck to the City of Grants
Motioned to approve by Commissioner Lucero
Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst
5 Affirmative
Consideration of Resolution 21-63 Authorizing the Auction of Vehicles and Equipment currently
utilized by the Sheriff’s Department
Motioned to approve by Commissioner Windhorst
Seconded by Commissioner Garcia
5 Affirmative
Consideration of Resolution 21-64 FY22 Budget Adjustment Number 2
Motioned fo approve by Commissioner Lowery
Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst
5 Affirmative
Consideration to approve requisitions over $20,000
a. 2021 Durango-Melloy Dodge-Manager’s Dept.-$32,480
b. Patamedic Level Cardiac Monitor-Fire Marshall-$24,850.55
Motioned to approve by Commissioner Lowery
Seconded by Commissioner Lucero
5 Affirmative

Page 2 of 3



11. Executive Session-REMOVED
Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
*  Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State
Statute Section 10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:

h. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)
i BOCC v. Jaynes

i. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)
jo Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)
k. other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
" Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session
- Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed In Closed Session Were Limited To Those

Specified In Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statutes Section
10-15-1.

12. Announcements
The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be on, Thursday, December 16th, 2021, at 5:00p.m. The Cibola
County Offices will be closed Thursday, November 25th, and Friday, November 26th, 2021, in observation of
Thanksgiving Holidays. '

13. Adjournment
5:31pm

Page 3 of 3



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 16" of December, 2021

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1% Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery,ﬁ 2"Vice Chairman

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhoerst, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL



Minutes
11.22.2021

Special Commission
Meeting Minutes




Special Commission
Meeting Monday
November 224, 2021
3:00 p.m.

The Cibola County Commission held a Special Meeting on Monday November 22" 2021 at 3:00 pm in the
Cibola County Commission Center

Elected Officials Present Staff

Daniel Torrez Chairman Kate Fletcher, County Manager
Martha Garcia, 1st Vice Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman Natalie Grine, Deputy Clerk
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner Marisa Baca, Filing/Recording

Denise Salcido, BOE

Call to Order

Chairman Torrez called the meeting to order at 3:00pm
Roll Call
5-Present
Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lucero
rayer
Led by Commissioner Windhorst

Approval of Agenda

Motioned to approve by Commissioner Lucero Seconded by Commissioner Windhorst 5-Affirmative

Presentation
a.  Redistricting-Research and Polling-Steve Cabiedes

New Business — Action May Be Taken

a.  Consideration of Resolution 21-65 Adopting a County Commission Redistricting Plan Based on the
2020 Census
PLAN B
Motioned to approve by Commissioner Lucero
Seconded by Commissioner Torrez
1 NO - Lowery
4 Affirmative

nouncements
The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be on, Thursday, December 16th, 2021, at 5:00p.m. The
Cibola County Offices will be closed Wednesday, November 24th Due to a Complex Wide Power
Shut Off Needed For 1st Phase of HVAC Install and Thursday, November 25th, and Friday,
November 26th, 2021, in observation of Thanksgiving Holidays.

3:58 pm

Page 1 of1



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 16" of December, 2021

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1°' Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL



Budget and
Finance Report

As of November 30, 2021-No Backup at this
time



NEW MEXICO -

EST. 1981

Cibola County

Commission Meeting
December 16, 2021

Daniel Torrez, Chairman
Martha Garcia, 15t Vice-Chair
Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chair
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Kate Fletcher, County Manager



——

Finance
Report




Cibola County Cvn_mﬁmm

® Finance Reports & Budgets located on Finance
Department webpage

* Manager’s Office is reconciled to the bank through
September 30t for Main Operating account but will
catching up now after the audit. The Treasurer’s Office
has the Tax operating account reconciled through
September 301, They are waiting for TYLER to fix a 20
cent adjustment. We should all be caught up next month.

®* NMFA Board in Santa Fe met today via zoom for our
HVAC loan and Fire Vehicle loans.




$800,000

Actuals, FY 22 Projection, &
$700,000 GRT Distributions with Contracts

$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000

m NOO~OOO Our contract amounts are automatically deducted before we receive our GRT
distribution so | add them back in to get a truer picture on what we actually receive.
The NEW Compensating tax is now included. The local distribution pursuant to 7-1-

MHOO~OOO 6.64 is no longer in effect.

mt July August September October November December January February March April May June

2022 YTD Actuals $375,851 $531,510 $559,590 $614,259 $580,018
lemmm? 022 Projected GRT| $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943 $393,943
2021 YTD Actuals $346,410 $449,178 $422,858 $406,515 $386,253 $483,975 $441,061 $483,245 $395,402 $391,479 $480,014 $488,025

e 2020 YTD Actuals $409,931 $409,719 $361,865 $522,200 $452,945 $417,303 $467,905 S467,467 $404,966 $390,390 $279,165 $387,558
2019 YTD Actuals $388,766 $370,384 $377,648 $395,792 $366,307 $344,509 $341,921 $436,280 $353,013 $314,669 $378,007 $334,204
2018 YTD Actuals $351,471 $59,592 $473,499 $322,958 $368,668 $395,464 $259,314 $408,493 $302,317 $354,221 $713,772 $366,412




Comparison of Net GRT including Contracts (Intercepts)
and effects of COVID on GRT

$838,204

$747,483
\ $694,448
$656,556 /mmao Nmo \
AN 3 -
$572,899 J S580,614

$564,065 /7 N\ ST\
$600,000

ARG $729,640 $624,583

w. $675,823
$700,000 D

$467,467

$409,719 945
249% $404,966

\ $417,303
$500, 80?8 931
YE 588

653,422

390,390

5741,985
$728,294

,\mmmm 944

$600,8824
J ¢m~u wmm

$449,178~ $422,858

wmu ks “ mbom 515

$657,722
$719,679

L3583 Fas

" 9573,891 $480,014
$483,975 $483.245 \

\Iﬁﬂ: 06

[ \
évwE 691

.~ $178,956

6163,125 mw:m.m:m

s $176,276
300,000

$176,09¢
\ Awu.wﬁwwu $156,157

$200,000 |\ , \ o \
05,955\ __f e

$100,000 $177,747

—=Grants ln:oo_m Milan

\. $255,228
! $160,364

N

J_— $346,410 /| $386,253 ¢395 402

$189,677 $197,727 $197,167

$210,951
SIS E29 e

N
$195,899

$199,561
$149,363 \

\

$183,973 / $182,479

o4

$172,534

$180,911

~Linear Awwmzﬁmv Linear (Cibola)

$H20,7:

£.3
e b

: ::mml

$794,187
$770,430

e s S,

ey

uOI,.\
mmm@ 590
\

" f
$488,025 \

$614,259

$245,350
$280,546 \
$239,081

225,278 |

o ot AT —

$217,936

ilan)




Property Tax Collections
53,630,556

$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000

$2,000,000 $300,000 $265,061

$1,500,000 ¢
$1,000,000

$500,000 Lo ATnrey

S-

Current Taxes Delinguent Taxes

® 2022 Budget Projection B November 30, 2021 Actuals




Cibola County Monthly Report - As of November 30, 2021

Beginning Cash.

Beginning

Ending Cash &

Bond A, Bond B,

Balance asof | Investments as of Investment General Fund & Ending Cash &
Active Funds 7/1/2021 7/1/2021 YTD Revenues YTD Transfers | YTD Expenditures | YTD Adjustments Balances Road Reserves Investment Balances
101 - INVESTMENT FUND $0.00 $5,269,769.14 $2,913.93 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,272,683.07 ($3,707,570.18) $1,565,112.89
401 - GENERALFUND|  $6,095,825.92 $0.00 $1,640,801.92 ($1,203,778.35) ($2,875,342.54) $2,753,936.82 $6,411,443.77 $0.00 $6,411,443.77
402 - ROAD $120,326.84 $0.00 $476,647.18 $100,000.00 ($496,772.00) $0.00 $200,202.02 $0.00 $200,202.02
403 - FARM & RANGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 ($7,104.12) $0.00 $895.88 $0.00 $895.88
406 - INDIGENT $97,455.34 $0.00 $262,044.47 $0.00 ($8,023.89) $0.00 $351,475.92 $0.00 $351,475.92
407 - SAN RAFAEL VFD $167,250.21 $0.00 $92,942.00 ($39,471.00) ($52,496.34) $0.00 $168,224.87 $0.00 $168,224.87
408 - BLUEWATER VFD|  $250,707.52 $0.00 $60,051.00 ($18,687.00) ($6,830.70) $0.00 $285,240.82 $0.00 $285,240.82
409 - LOBO CANYON VFD $171,589.67 $0.00 $2,946.00 $43,525.00 ($3,504.96) $0.00 $214,555.71 $0.00 $214,555.71
413 - LAGUNA EMS $0.00 $0.00 $13,521.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,521.00 $0.00 $13,521.00
415 - PINEHILL EMS $8,778.78 $0.00 $11,014.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,792.78 $0.00 $19,792.78
416 - FENCE LAKE VFD $314,550.59 $0.00 $28,475.50 $7,000.00 {$3,556.22) $0.00 $346,469.87 $0.00 $346,469.87
418 - CANDY KITCHEN VFD $48,986.33 $0.00 $76,791.00 ($31,189.00) ($7,688.01) $0.00 $86,900.32 $0.00 $86,900.32
419 - LAGUNA VFD|  $418,242.30 $0.00 $170,844.00 $0.00 ($79,337.34) $0.00 $509,748.96 $0.00 $509,748.96
424 - CUBERO VFD $138,644.12 $0.00 $49,604.50 ($6,787.00) ($41,844.63) $0.00 $139,616.99 $0.00 $139,616.99
425 - CUBERO EMS $2,919.51 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 ($100.00) $0.00 $7,819.51 $0.00 $7,819.51
427 - ELMORRO VFD|  $226,848.60 $0.00 $28,475.50 $7,000.00 ($70,751.32) $0.00 $191,572.78 $0.00 $191,572.78
428 - SUPERIOR AMBULANCE $176.53 $0.00 $10,259.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,435.53 $0.00 $10,435.53
435 - CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH| ~ $165,152.67 $0.00 $496,241.34 $0.00 ($430,109.23) $0.00 $231,284.78 $0.00 $231,284.78
438 - DWI GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $120.00 ($120.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
439- DWIDISTRIBUTION|  $195,169.27 $0.00 $92,353.60 ($120.00) ($171,856.51) $0.00 $115,546.36 $0.00 $115,546.36
475 - COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $793,808.26 $0.00 $121,182.36 ($42,000.00) ($4,387.36) $0.00 $868,603.26 $0.00 $868,603.26
500 - CLERK RECORDING/FILING $66,393.78 $0.00 $18,742.00 $0.00 ($22,547.43) $0.00 $62,588.35 $0.00 $62,588.35
569 - 2014A BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $523,784.05 $0.00 ($105,262.41) $0.00 $418,521.64 $0.00 $418,521.64
570 - 2014B BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,373,489.53 $0.00 ($228,514.12) $0.00 $1,144,975.41 $0.00 $1,144,975.41
575 - NMFA LOANS $0.00 $66,602.04 $173.07 $100,608.00 $0.00 $0.00 $167,383.11 $0.00 $167,383.11
603 - EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT $785.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $785.00 $0.00 $785.00
604 - FIRE MARSHAL $42,808.95 $0.00 $51,176.52 $0.00 ($66,862.73) $0.00 $27,122.74 $0.00 $27,122.74
605 - LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION $164.98 $0.00 $29,000.00 ($19,999.00) $0.00 $0.00 $9,165.98 $0.00 $9,165.98
606 - NMDOT LOCAL GOV. TRANS. GRANT $902,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($14,978.35) $0.00 $887,521.65 $0.00 $887,521.65
607 - QUARTZ HILL PROJECT $0.00 $0.00 $221,973.14 $0.00 ($164,170.54) $0.00 $57,802.60 $0.00 $57,802.60
609 - CARES ACT ELECTION'S GRANT|  $25,770.28 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($24,806.07) $0.00 $964.21 $0.00 $964.21
610 - CENSUS BUREAU $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
614 - DETENTION CENTER|  $116,577.75 $0.00 $1,462,467.19 $1,100,000.00 ($2,376,201.39) ($44,414.81) $258,428.74 $0.00 $258,428.74
615 - COMPLIANCE PROGRAM $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
620 - 1% REAPPRAISAL FUND $255,988.03 $0.00 $5,138.95 $0.00 ($130,929.50) $0.00 $130,197.48 $0.00 $130,197.48
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT|  $2,590,653.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($16,026.97) $0.00 $2,574,626.03 $0.00 $2,574,626.03
650 - NMFA COMP. & LEDA GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,566.00 ($8,566.00) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
651- CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS $32,787.65 $0.00 $4,422.88 ($12,787.65) ($17,691.51) $0.00 $6,731.37 $0.00 $6,731.37
TOTALS=| $13,250,861.88 $5,336,371.18 $7,332,475.63 ($0.00) ($7,436,382.19) $2,709,522.01 $21,192,848.51 ($3,707,570.18) $17,485,278.33




NN

Total Investments 11/30/2021

General Fund Reserve
Road Fund Reserve
2014A Bond Reserve
2014B Bond Reserve

Unassigned Investments

FY 22 Reserve Requirements Within our Investments

$5,272,683.07

$2,307,679.00
$158,828.92
$524,481.26
$742,400.00

$3,733,389.18

$1,539,293.89

g i QA VR BN B 5 P o8

Will Fluctuate with Adjustments
Will Fluctuate with Adjustments
Per the Tax Compliance Certificate
Per the Tax Compliance Certificate
Current Mandatory Reserve




Monthly Multiple Choice

What are the County’s reserve requirement for the state?

® A —General Fund (GF) is 3/12 of budgeted expenditures
and the Road Fund is 1/12 of budgeted expenditures

® B — GF is 3/12 of budgeted expenditures and the Road
Fund is 3/12 of budgeted expenditures

® C—-GFis a/12 of budgeted expenditures only

® D - GFis 1/12 of budgeted expenditures and the Road
Fund is 1/12 of budgeted expenditures

mwafé g\\&

\ .
Iy A\

Answer: A — General Fund (GF) 3/12 of budgeted expenditures and the Road Fund is
1/12 of budgeted expenditures. This not a law, just a mandate by DFA in their memo’s
although they are allowing local governments to dip into the reserve this and last year
due to COVID

AN






Public Safety

Building

Scope of Work Update




‘ VIGIL & ASSOCIATES
\&' & ARCHITECTURAL GROUP, P.C.

November 19, 2021

Judy Horacek

Cibola County

Government Relations/Projects
700 E. Roosevelt Ave. Suite 50
Grants, NM 87020
jphoracek@co.cibola.nm.us

P (505) 285-2557

F (505) 285-5434

RE: RFP No. 2021-003 Design & Construction Administration of Public Safety Building
Ms. Horacek,

Pursuant to your request, we welcome the opportunity to propose the following additional design
services for the renovation of the National Guard Grants Armory for use as the Cibola County Public
Safety Building. This fee proposal serves to supplement the Professional Services Agreement
between Cibola County and Vigil & Associates.

ORIGINAL PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Interior renovation of the approximately 20,000 SF Armory building for use by the Cibola County
Sheriff Dept, with a staff of 22, the Dispatch Dept, with a staff of 15-17 and the EM Dept with a staff of
2. The intent is to minimize renovations to take advantage of the existing components to the greatest
extent possible. Limited landscaping and outdoor utility work to be included as necessary.

SCOPE of ADITIONAL SERVICES:

This additional service request is intended to supplement the design fee proposal submitted on
4/26/2021. After initial programming, user group and county administration interviews, as well as fact
finding processes undertaken at the beginning of the design effort it was determined that the scope of
work should be increased to ensure that user group needs are properly accommodated at the new
facility. This scope increase will increase the amount of the building areas to be renovated as well as
the depth of renovation in these areas. Also to be included are limited exterior design to include entry
canopies, pavement replacement and minimal landscaping improvements. This will help ensure that
the building as renovated, will serve the OEM, Sheriff Dept and 911 for many years to come. The
above scope is per discussions with County Management and as approved by the Cibola County
Commission. Basic Services rates are determined using the State of New Mexico Architect Rate
Schedule.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment consultation services will be provided to include development of
preliminary furnishings/equipment plans to be passed on to Cibola County selected vendors for
further development. At this hand off point, Vigil & Associates role will be facilitation and coordination
including meetings, selection and color assistance but will rely on selected vendors details and
documents.



TERMS:
All other terms of the 4/26/21 fee proposal, executed professional services agreement and 5/14/21
notice to proceed are to remain in place.

FEES:

We propose to perform the “Scope of Services” described herein for the following-
Additional Basic Services $137,000.00
Furnishings/FF&E Consultation $ 10.000.00

Subtotal $ 147,000.00
plus NMGRT @ 7.875% $ 11.576.25
Total $ 158,576.25

*Any additional services beyond this scope of work will be billed at either the architect/engineer’s
hourly rate schedule or via negotiated fee.

We appreciate the opportunity and look forward to continuing work with you on this project. Should
you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

(L

Vicente Castillo, A.1.A. LEED AP
Architect | Principal
Vigil & Associates Architectural Group



Reports Not

Presented

Road Dept.




Cibola County Road Dept.

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone 505-285 3656 Fax

Monday, November 6, 2021

To: Kate Fletcher - County Manager
Fr: Edward Salazar - Road Superintendent
Re: Monthly Report: 11/01/21 - 11/30/21 (November)

Regular Maintenance
Blade & Shape
Road Description Miles

C63 Anaconda Road 5.931
Cc49 Zuni Canyon Road 13.427
5 Moquino-LaJoya Loop 4.126
C25 Bell Road 2.539
C2 Rio Puerco Road 3.234
C35 E. Homestead Road 9.064
Cl Marquez Road 16.208
C35F Monday Road 1.491
C41 Pie Town Road 5.350

Total Miles 61.370

Special Projects

32 Zuni Trail - Fix culvert.
c17 Mt Taylor Addition - Cut trees, mowing.,
C20 San Mateo Rd. - Install culvert, cut trees.
C28 Bluewater Village - Repair shoulder, cut trees, clean guard rails.
C5 Mogquino - La Joya Loop - Sweep, Put up signs, fix pot holes, install speed bumps.
52 El Gallo Rd. - Put up signs.
Cls Rinconada Rd. - Clean cattle guards.
Cl Marquez Rd. - Fix culvert, sweep, clean guard rails.

C484 Timberlake Rd. - Put up deleniators, fix culvert, haul Millings.



c6 Alamo Rd. - Fix Driveway, sweep.
Cc41 Pie Town Rd. - Remove & replace culvert,
Sign Maintenance.
Patching at Front Office.

Forest Roads

FR 447 Surface Blading & Ditch Maintenance - (11-10-21, 11-15-21, 11-16-21, 11-18-21)




Cibola County Road Dept.

505-285-2570 Phone

515 W. High Street
Grants NM 87020

FUEL REPORT - CIBOLA COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

505-287-3656 Fax

November 2027
UNLEADED
UNIT # | VEHICLE # | COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
127 | 618473 0.33 10.40 143 13748 | 8 47.00
128 | G-18464 | #VALUE! | #VALUEI U 0000 | $ -
130 | G-15638 0.00 #DIV/0] 58 0000 |$ -
131 | G-29800 | #VALUE! | #VALUE! /U 0000 |8 :
133 | G-23696 0.22 15.81 577 36489 | 125.00
138 | G-95862 0.24 16.55 1,405 84873 |8 330.64
139 | G57384 | #VALUEl | #VALUE! NI 0000 | $ -
140 | G-57619 | #VALUE! | #VALUE! U 0000 | $ ~
141 | G-57618 0.20 16.72 472 26.231 | $ 95.96
146 146 #VALUE! | #VALUE! U 0000 |8 -
147 | G66164 0.17 2089 234 11202 |8 38.64
148 | G-66165 0.15 22.75 1,006 4220 | $ 151.11
150 | G-70482 0.20 16.72 585 34.991 |3 118.94
151 | G-78718 0.27 12.63 1,936 153.249 | $ 530.54
152 | G-64239 017 20.48 1,533 74865 | $ 254.32
155 | G86952 | #VALUEl | #VALUE! NIU 0000 | $ :
154 | G-86953 0.22 15.29 312 20399 | $ 69.34
155 | G-8695¢ | #VALUE! | H#VALUE! U 0000 | $
156 | commreseor 17.50 0.23 2 8863 |8 35.00
157 | G-91750 0.19 18.07 2,329 128.881 | $ 434.39
TOTAL GAS 640.011 | $§ 2,230.88




DIESEL FUEL

UNIT # | VENICLE ¥ | COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
137 G-50237 0.33 11.88 367 30.895 $ 122.00
209 G-18476 #VALUE! #VALUE! NVU 0.000 $ -
212 G-30550 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
213 G-30549 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 3 -
214 (-38441 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU $ -
215 G-67372 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
216 G-67371 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
217 G-70782 0.46 8.58 559 65.140 $ 256.43
218 Distributor #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
219 | Water Truck 1.14 3.58 131 36.588 $ 149.97
220 | New Transport 0.74 5.38 1,393 259.081 $ 1,037.78
221 | New Dump Truck 0.67 6.19 862 139.216 $ 574.56
222 | New Dump Truck 0.71 5.61 640 114.130 $ 454.63
305 305 10.19 0.39 20 51,752 $ 203.74
306 306 12.05 0.34 4 11,758 $ 48.20
307 307 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
308 308 #VALUE! #VALUE! N 0.000 $
309 309 0.00 #DIV/O! 7 0.000 $ -
310 310 8.06 0.49 2 4.103 $ 16.12
311 311 28.15 0.14 11 76.657 ) 309.69
312 312 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
313 313 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 3 .
314 314 10.19 039 13 33.467 $ 132.50
416 416 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $
417 417 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ .
418 418 7.14 0.55 21 38.178 $ 150.00
419 419 12.96 0.31 76 247439 |$ 984.83
420 420 14,54 0.27 81 206.292 |8 1,177.40
501 501 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
525 525 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -

Extra Fuel | "0 " wVALUE! | #VALUE! NI 18.501 |$ 8.50

Extra Fuel | Chain Saw #DIV/0! 0.00 0 2.500 $ 70.00

TOTAL DIESEL 1425.697 | $ 5,696.35

*N/U = NOT USED




Public Hearing

Ordinance 2021-002-Cibola County Local
Economic Development Act (LEDA)




ORDINANCE NO. 2021-02

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACT (LEDA) ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, the development of the local economy is vital to the well being of Cibola County
and its residents; and,

WHEREAS, local communities may need to provide land buildings infrastructure and other
financial incentives to compete with other states and locales in efforts to attract and retain
businesses; and,

WHEREAS, the New Mexico State Legislature enacted NMSA 1978 Sections 5-10-1 to 5-10-
17, entitled the Local Economic Development Act, which provides to local governments the

authority to use public resources for economic development purposes; and,

WHEREAS, this Economic Development Ordinance is enacted pursuant to that statutory
authority.
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
COUNTY OF CIBOLA, NEW MEXICO
Section 1. LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
1.1 This Ordinance may be cited as the "Local Economic Development Ordinance."
Section 2. AUTHORITY
2.1 The Local Economic Development Plan Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the
statutory authority conferred upon municipalities and counties to allow public
support of economic development (NMSA 1978 Sections 5-10-1 to 5-10-17). This
Ordinance is adopted as part of the County’s economic development plan.

Section 3. PURPOSE

3.1 The purpose of the Local Economic Development Ordinance is to allow public

support of economic projects to foster, promote and enhance local economic development

efforts while continuing to protect against the unauthorized use of public money and

2021 Local Economic Development Ordinance



other public resources. Further, the purpose of the ordinance is to allow the County to
enter into one or more joint powers agreements with other local governments to plan and
support regional economic development projects.

3.2  Local Economic Development Act.

Local governments are allowed to provide direct or indirect assistance to qualifying
business for furthering or implementing economic development plan and projects,
furthermore local and regional governments have the authority to contribute assets to
development projects; however, the imposition of a tax must be approved by the voters in
referendum option. The County reserves the right to impose the maximum tax for
eligible uses.

Section 4. DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THE LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE

4.1 "arts and cultural district" means a developed district of public and private uses
that is created pursuant to the Arts and Cultural District Act [15-5A-1 through 15-5A-7
NMSA 1978].

4.2 “broadband telecommunications network facilities” mean the electronics,
equipment, transmission facilities, fiber-optic cables and any other item directly related to
a system capable of transmission of internet protocol or other formatted data at current
federal communications commission minimum speed standard, all of which will be
owned and used by a provider of internet access services.

4.3 "cultural facility" means a facility that is owned by the state, a county, a
municipality or a qualifying entity that serves the public through preserving, educating
and promoting the arts and culture of a particular locale, including theaters, museums,
libraries, galleries, cultural compounds, educational organizations, performing arts
venues and organizations, fine arts organizations, studios and media laboratories and live-
work housing facilities.

4.4 "economic development project” or "project" means the project of a qualifying
entity for which public support may be provided pursuant to the Local Economic
Development Act.

4.5 "governing body" means the Board of County Commissioners.

4.6 "new full-time economic base job” means a job:

(a) That is primarily performed in New Mexico;

(b) That is held by an employee who is hired to work an average of at least thirty-
two hours per week or at least forty-eight weeks per year;

2021 Local Economic Development Ordinance 2



(c) That is:

i. Involved, directly or in a supervisory capacity, with the
production of a service; provided that the majority of the
revenue generated from the service is from sources outside the
state; or tangible or intangible personal property for sale; or,

ii. Held by an employee who is employed at a regional, national
or international headquarters operation or at an operation that
primarily provides services for other operations of the -
qualifying entity that are located outside the state; and,

(d) That is not directly involved with natural resources extraction or processing,
on-site services where the customer is present for the delivery of the service,
retail, construction or agriculture except for value-added processing
performed on agricultural products that would then be sold for wholesale or
retail consumption.an individual, corporation, association, partnership or other
legal entity.

4.7 “person” means an individual, corporation, association, partnership or other legal
entity.

4.8 “public support” means the provision of assistance by the state to a local or regional
government or the provision of direct or indirect assistance to a qualifying entity by a
local or regional government for an economic development project. “public support”:

(a) includes the provision of:

1. land, buildings or other infrastructure, by purchase, lease, grant,
construction, reconstruction, improvement or other acquisition or
conveyance;

ii. the placement of new broadband telecommunications network
facilities; provided that the facilities shall not serve a public facility or
location that already meets federal communications commission
baseline speed standards;

iii. rights-of-way infrastructure, including trenching and conduit, for the
placement of new broadband telecommunications network facilities;

1v. public works improvements essential to the location or expansion of a
qualifying entity;

v. payments for professional services contracts necessary for local or
regional governments to implement a plan or provide public support
for a project;

vi. direct loans or grants for land, buildings or infrastructure;

2021 Local Economic Development Ordinance 3



2021 Local Economic Development Ordinance

vii. technical assistance to cultural facilities;

viii. loan guarantees securing the cost of land, buildings or infrastructure in
an amount not to exceed the revenue that may be derived from an
increment of the: 1) municipal gross receipts tax imposed at a rate not
to exceed one-fourth percent and dedicated by the ordinance imposing
the increment for projects; or 2) county gross receipts tax imposed at a
rate not to exceed one-eighth percent and dedicated by the ordinance
imposing the increment for projects;

ix. grants for public works infrastructure improvements essential to the
location or expansion of a qualifying entity and grants or subsidies to
cultural facilities;

X. land for a publicly held industrial park or a publicly owned cultural
facility, by purchase; and

xi. the construction of a building for use by a qualifying entity; but

(b) does not include the purchase, lease, grant or other acquisition or conveyance of
water rights;

4.9 "qualifying entity" means a corporation, limited liability company, partnership,
Joint venture, syndicate, association or other person that is one or a combination of two or
more of the following:

a) an industry for the manufacturing, processing or assembling of agricultural or
manufactured products;

b) acommercial enterprise for storing, warehousing, distributing or selling products
of agriculture, mining or industry, but, other than as provided in Paragraph (), 63}
or (i) of this subsection, not including any enterprise for sale of goods or
commodities at retail or for distribution to the public of electricity, gas, water or
telephone or other services commonly classified as public utilities;

¢) abusiness, including a restaurant or lodging establishment, in which all or part of
the activities of the business involves the supplying of services to the general
public or to governmental agencies or to a specific industry or customer, but,
other than as provided in Paragraph (e) or (i) of this subsection, not including
businesses primarily engaged in the sale of goods or commodities at retail;

d) an Indian nation, tribe or pueblo or a federally chartered tribal corporation;

) atelecommunications sales enterprise that makes the majority of its sales to
persons outside New Mexico;



f) a facility for the direct sales by growers of agricultural products, commonly
known as farmers' markets;

g) abusiness that is the developer of a metropolitan redevelopment project;
h) a cultural facility; and
1) aretail business;

4.10 "regional government" means any combination of municipalities and counties that
enter into a joint powers agreement to provide for economic development projects
pursuant to a plan adopted by all parties to the joint powers agreement.

4.11 "retail business" means a business that is primarily engaged in the sale of goods or
commodities at retail and that is located in the unincorporated area of the county.

Section 5. RESTRICTIONS ON PUBLIC EXPENDITURES OR PLEDGES OF
CREDIT

5.1 The County shall not provide public support for economic development projects
as permitted pursuant to Article 9, Section 14 of the constitution of New Mexico except
as provided in the Local Economic Development Act or as otherwise permitted by law.

5.2 The total amount of public money expended and the value of credit pledged in the
fiscal year in which that money is expended by the County for economic development
projects pursuant to Article 9, Section 14 of the constitution of New Mexico and the
Local Economic Development Act shall not exceed ten percent of the annual general
fund expenditures of the local government in that fiscal year. The limits of this
subsection shall not apply to:

a) the value of any land or building contributed to any project pursuant to a project
participation agreement.

b) revenue generated through the imposition of the municipal infrastructure gross
receipts tax at a rate not to exceed one-fourth percent and dedicated to furthering
or implementing economic development plans and projects as defined by the
Local Economic Development Act or projects as defined in the Statewide
Economic Development Finance Act; provided that no more than the greater of
fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or ten percent of the revenue collected shall be
used to promotion and administration of or professional services contracts related
to the implementation of any such economic development plan adopted by the
governing body.

c¢) revenue generated through the imposition of a county infrastructure gross receipts
tax at a rate not to exceed one-eighth percent and dedicated to furthering or

2021 Local Economic Development Ordinance 5



implementing economic development plans and projects as defined in the Local
Economic Development Act or projects as defined in the Statewide Economic
Development Finance Act; provided that no more than the greater of fifty
thousand dollars ($50,000) or ten percent of the revenue collected shall be used to
promotion and administration of or professional services contracts related to the
implementation of any such economic development plan adopted by the
governing body.

d) the proceeds of a revenue bond issue to which municipal infrastructure gross
receipts tax revenue is pledged.

e) the proceeds of a revenue bond issue to which county infrastructure gross receipts
tax revenue is pledged; or,

f) funds donated by private entities to be used for defraying the cost of a project.

5.3 The County shall create an economic development fund into which revenues
generated for economic development projects to which the limits of Subsection 5.2 do not
apply shall be deposited. The economic development fund and income from the
economic development fund shall be deposited as provided by law. Money in the
economic development fund may be expended only as provided in the Local Economic
Development Act or the Statewide Economic Development Finance Act.

5.4 In order to expend money from an economic development fund for arts and cultural
district purposes, cultural facilities or retail businesses, the governing body of a county
that has imposed a municipal or county local option infrastructure gross receipts tax for
furthering or implementing economic development plans and projects, as defined in the
Local Economic Development Act, or projects, as defined in the Statewide Economic
Development Finance Act, by referendum of the majority of the voters voting on the
question approving the ordinance imposing the municipal or county infrastructure gross
receipts tax before July 1, 2013 shall be required to adopt a resolution. The resolution
shall call for an election to approve arts and cultural districts as a qualifying purpose and
cultural facilities or retail businesses as a qualifying entity before any revenue generated
by the municipal or county local option gross receipts tax for furthering or implementing
economic development plans and projects, as defined in the Local Economic
Development Act, or projects, as defined in the Statewide Economic Development
Finance Act, can be expended from the economic development fund for arts and cultural
district purposes, cultural facilities or retail businesses.

5.5 The governing body shall adopt a resolution calling for an election within seventy-
five days of the date the ordinance is adopted on the question of approving arts and
cultural districts as a qualifying purpose and cultural facilities or retail businesses as a
qualifying entity eligible to utilize revenue generated by the Municipal Local Option
Gross Receipts and Compensating Taxes Act or the County Local Option Gross
Receipts and Compensating Taxes Act for furthering or implementing economic
development plans and providing public support for and projects as defined in the

2021 Local Economic Development Ordinance 6



Local Economic Development Act or projects as defined in the Statewide Economic
Development Finance Act.

5.6 The question shall be submitted to the voters of the municipality or county as a
separate question at a regular municipal or county election or at a special election
called for that purpose by the governing body. A special municipal election shall be
called, conducted and canvassed as provided in substantially the same manner as
provided by law for general elections.

5.7 If a <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>